Durham %k

County Council

Corporate Parenting Panel

Date Friday 8 March 2024
Time 9.30 am
Venue Committee Room 2, County Hall, Durham

a ~ W0 DN B

10

11

12

Business

Part A
Items which are open to the public and press

Apologies for Absence

Substitute Members

Minutes of the meeting held on 26 January 2024 (Pages 3 - 12)
Declarations of Interest

Number of Children in Our Care and Care Leavers - Verbal update from
Deputy Director of Children and Young People's Services

Ofsted Updates - Verbal update from Deputy Director of Children and
Young People's Services

Proud Moments - Verbal update from Strategic Managers

Children in Care Council Update - Presentation of young people from
the Children in Care Council (Pages 13 - 14)

Regional Pathfinder Project Update - Report of Head of Children's
Social Care (Pages 15 - 24)

Performance Update - Report and presentation of Corporate Equality
and Strategy Manager (Pages 25 - 42)

Corporate Parenting Panel Development Session and Action Plan -
Report of Deputy Director of Children and Young People's Services
(Pages 43 - 48)

Poetry Book, Children in Care and Care Leavers - Report of Head of
Children's Social Care (Pages 49 - 68)



13 Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chair of the meeting, is of
sufficient urgency to warrant consideration.

14  Any resolution relating to the exclusion of the public during the
discussion of items containing exempt information.

Part B
Items during which it is considered the meeting will not be open to the
public (consideration of exempt or confidential information)

15 Regulation 44 Visits - Durham County Council Residential Homes -
Presentation of Strategic Manager of Children's Homes
(Pages 69 - 74)

16 Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chair of the meeting, is of
sufficient urgency to warrant consideration.

Helen Bradley
Head of Legal and Democratic Services

County Hall
Durham
29 February 2024

To: The Members of the Corporate Parenting Panel:

Councillor M Simmons (Chair)
Councillor M Walton (Vice-Chair)

Councillors R Adcock-Forster, J Charlton, S Deinali, J Griffiths,

T Henderson, C Hunt, B Kellett, M McGaun, L Mavin, S Quinn, A Reed,
K Robson, K Rooney, A Savory, P Sexton, S Townsend, C Varty and
M Wilson

Co-opted Members:

J Bell, C Brown, J Gamble, E Reed, W Taylor, F Tweddle, R Woods and
Children in Care Council representatives

Contact:  Jill Hogg Tel: 03000 269 711




Agenda Item 3

DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL

At a meeting of the Corporate Parenting Panel held in Committee Room 2,
County Hall, Durham on Friday 26 January 2024 at 9.30 am

Present:
Councillor M Simmons (Chair)

Members of the Panel:
Councillors M Walton (Vice-Chair), R Adcock-Forster, S Deinali, B Kellett,
S Quinn, K Rooney, A Savory, S Townsend and C Varty

Co-opted Members:
J Bell, Billie-Leigh, J Gamble, Luke and W Taylor

Also Present:

Sharon Davey — Strategic Manager, Looked After and Permanence
Rachel Harris — Service Improvement Manager

Anne Haigh — Aycliffe Secure Services Centre Manager

Rob Johnson — Project Manager, Investing in Children

Michelle Nicholson — Maple House Manager

Lee Peacock — Participation and Engagement Officer

Helen Radcliffe — Strategic Manager, Progression and Learning
Martyn Stenton — Deputy Director of Children’s Services

Melanie Stubbs — Head of the Virtual School

Bernadette Toomey - Practice Lead, Children & Young People’s Services
Jayne Watson — Senior Partnerships Officer

1 Apologies
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J Charlton, J Griffiths,
T Henderson, C Hunt, L Mavin, A Reed, K Robson, M Wilson and Co-Opted
member Fiona Tweddle.

2 Substitute Members
No substitute members were in attendance.

3 Minutes
With an amendment to the minutes of the meeting held on 15 December

2023 to add Councillor M Wilson’s name to the attendees, the minutes were
agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

Page 3



Page 4

Under matters arising, it was reported that an update on Christmas cards had
been received from Demi and Zoe who had advised that the maximum
number of Christmas cards they could produce was one hundred cards. The
Senior Partnership Officer advised she will send an email to Members to
check who would like to place an order.

Declarations of interest
There were no declarations of interest.
Number of Children in our Care and Care Leavers

The Deputy Director of Children’s Services reported that the figure for
children in our care remained the same as last month at 1,202, including 22
young people placed for adoption, 80 unaccompanied asylum seeking young
people and 327 care leavers.

Ofsted Updates

The Panel noted the findings of the Ofsted visit on 14 and 15 November
2023 which focused on the Care Leavers’ Service. An event was held to
celebrate the successful visit and publication of the report, on 12 January.

The Practice Lead for the Children and Young Peoples Service, Bernadette
Toomey, shared her reflections of the visit. She reported that Ofsted were
impressed at the Council’s response to young people transitioning from care
and they recognised that the voice of young people is not only heard but that
young people have meaningful collaboration. Quoting from the report, the
Practice Lead highlighted that Ofsted found the voice of care experienced
young people to be ‘central to decision making’. Ofsted also recognised the
commitment from practitioners to strive to do the best for young people to
achieve their ambitions. Relationships between young people and their
Young People’s Advisers were considered to be strong and trusting and
Ofsted acknowledged the importance of the links with partners and the wider
care community.

The quality of written supervision records was an area highlighted for further
improvement and the service was addressing the issue, to ensure all
supervision records represent the breadth and depth of conversations.

Luke and Billie-Leigh commented that the experience of meeting the Ofsted
inspectors had shown the young people how important their views are in
helping to help shape the services of the future.

They spoke of how heart-warming the celebration event had been and they
thanked Lee Peacock, Participation and Engagement Officer, for arranging
such a fantastic event at short notice.



Billie-Leigh also shared a touching poem with the Corporate Parenting Panel,
that she wrote and performed at the event as a ‘thank you’ to the Young
People’s Advisers for their belief in young people.

Service Improvement Manager, Rachel Harris, said the event felt very much
like a family event and it brought people together. Luke and Billie-Leigh
agreed with the positive comments and commented on how much they had
enjoyed seeing the young people relaxing and enjoying themselves. The
Practice Lead concluded by saying the comments bore testament to the
positive report from Ofsted.

Councillor Varty expressed how proud members were to be part of such a
wonderful event.

Proud Moments

The Service Improvement Manager reported that she was proud to have
Billie-Leigh joining the team as a sessional employee in the role of Junior
Project Support Worker.

The team was looking forward to welcoming Billie-Leigh and the role will see
her participating in a range of engagement work.

Children in Care Council (CiCC) Update

Billie-Leigh and Luke delivered a presentation on CiCC highlights during the
month (for copy of presentation see file of minutes).

Highlights included the quarterly meeting with the Chief Executive at which
the young people shared their ideas and opinions on how the Council is
meeting its corporate parenting responsibilities.

The ‘Know, What, When’ guide had been finalised and the guide will ensure
that young people are aware of what to expect when entering care. The
CiCC Christmas quiz was planned by the young people and it had been a
resounding success.

The Panel noted that Care Day 2024 will take place on Saturday 17 February
2024 and the event will premiere the #morethancare film. Rob Johnson,
Project Manager of Investing in Children, explained that a young person who
Is keen to study media at university had been central to the production of the
film. Members were encouraged to attend the event and share the event
leaflet, within their networks.

Page 5



9 Children Looked After Strategic Partnership (CLASP) Update

The Panel considered the Children Looked After Strategic Partnership
update report presented by Sharon Davey, Strategic Manager (for copy of
report and presentation see file of minutes).

The Strategic Manager delivered the presentation which provided details of
the eight key priority areas to achieve the CLASP vision. The Panel noted the
work of the CLASP continues to build multi-agency partnerships and promote
collaborative working to meet the needs of young people in our care and care
leavers, up to the age of 25.

The Strategic Manager emphasised the importance of young people’s
engagement to achieve the key priorities and she spoke of the positive
feedback received throughout the year with regard to how well the young
people influence services. It was noted that young people were particularly
proactive in the opening of the Care Leavers’ Hub at Chester le Street; the
production of the ‘Know, What, When’ interactive book and the setting up of
an ‘Experts in Experience’ group.

The launch of a prison support pilot at HMP Durham has enabled Young
People’s Advisers to visit and support care experienced young people in the
prison. The success of the pilot has led neighbouring authorities to offer the
same support to their care experienced young people.

Priority actions in the workplan for 2024 include to build on the feedback
received from the Care Leavers’ Service inspection, to evaluate the newly
formed education subgroups and the performance with regard to early
permanence, with input from the Regional Adoption Agency Manager who is
now part of CLASP. The Service will also work with CLASP members to
establish a framework to measure success.

The Vice-Chair asked what support was provided to train staff who are
engaged in providing employment opportunities for young people and the
Strategic Manager responded that the establishment of NEET clinics help to
track young people’s progress. Information gathered at the clinics is then
reported to CLASP meetings, bi-monthly. The Education Sub-Group provides
additional support to Social Workers to ensure young people achieve their
potential and the group includes representation from Strategic Managers,
Residential Home Managers, the Virtual School Head and Durham Works.

The Chair announced that it was to be Sharon Davey’s last meeting and the

Panel expressed their thanks to Sharon for all her hard work and they wished
her well for the future.

Page 6



10

Resolved:
That the report and presentation be noted.
Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (UASC)

Sharon Davey, Strategic Manager, presented an update on the work of the
Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (UASC) Team (for copy of report
and presentation see file of minutes).

The Panel noted that most UASC arrive through the Home Office Transfer
Scheme, however some arrive unexpectedly as spontaneous arrivals.

The UASC Team was established in February 2022 due to the increased
demand for social work capacity and care provision for UASC. UASC are
represented on the Children in Care Council and work to establish the profile
of UASC has assisted the Children in Care Council to tailor their UASC offer.

The Strategic Manager thanked all those who had provided support to
develop the service, including the Early Help Service, the National Youth
Advocacy Service and voluntary and community groups including local sports
clubs and businesses whose contribution had helped the young people to
feel part of the community.

The Vice-Chair referred to the diverse profile of UASC and asked whether
translation services were available for the many different nationalities. The
Strategic Manager replied that translation services were available and the
Deputy Director of Children’s Services explained that the Education Service
also provides support through the English as an Additional Language (EAL)
service. He highlighted that many of the young people have a good
command of the English language on arrival and they are fully committed to
learning English with many attending ESOL (English as a Second Language)
courses. The Head of the Virtual School commented that support is also
available through the FlashAcademy online language learning facility and a
teaching agency may be used to provide lessons to young people awaiting a
school placement.

Councillor Quinn spoke of the dedication of staff who are committed to
breaking down barriers in order to do everything possible to support young
people and she thanked staff for their good work.

Resolved:

That the report and presentation be noted.

Page 7



11

Page 8

Virtual School Annual Report 2022-23

Melanie Stubbs, Head of the Virtual School, presented an overview of the
Virtual School Annual Report for the period September 2022 to July 2023
academic year (for copy of report and presentation see file of minutes).

The Panel noted that at the end of the academic year, the Virtual School had
supported 766 children of statutory school age and delivered early years and
post 16 young provision. 53% of Durham children had an identified special
educational need in 2022-23, however this figure was approximately 3%
below the national figure. The Head of the Virtual school highlighted that
identifying a special need enabled the right support to be provided and a
young person in receipt of an Education Health Care Plan (EHCP) would
continue to have access to the funding, if they were to move out of the
county.

The number of school moves which had taken place during the year was
reported as 52, which was slightly higher than the previous year and a total
of 54 school moves were challenged by the Virtual School. Attendances were
improving and there had been one permanent exclusion, 40 suspensions and
21 young people had more than one period of suspension. Short term
support for suspended young people was available, which relieved pressure
on carers.

The Head of the Virtual School provided details on continuing priorities and
new priorities for 2023-24. A new priority had been the appointment of a
dedicated Previously Child Looked After Officer. Other priorities include to
continue the development of the support for UASC and to provide a cohesive
system for children looked after who require a statutory assessment and an
EHCP, to ensure needs are met in a timely manner.

The Vice-Chair highlighted the continuing priority to focus on attendance and
asked how this would be carried out. The Head of the Virtual School replied
that work is carried out with the Attendance Improvement Team (AIT) and
Social Workers to promote a positive ethos around attendance and she
added that attendance would be discussed in more detail at the forthcoming
sub-group meeting. The Head of the Virtual School reminded the Panel that
there were concerns, previously, regarding a dip in attendance of year 6
pupils on reaching year 7, however this was much improved due to the
success of the new transition work.

The Chair thanked the Head of the Virtual School for the useful Appendix B
to the report which provided definitions for abbreviations used within the
report.



Councillor Deinali was pleased to see the appointment of an officer
specifically for previously looked after children and requested further
information on their remit. The Head of the Virtual School clarified that the
officer would attend each young person’s final Personal Education Plan
meeting when the child is about to move for adoption, to build up an
educational profile and they will liaise with the adopter and school, when a
young person is moving out of the county, for up to two terms.

In response to a question from Luke as to whether the Education Fun Fund
could be used as an incentive to promote school attendance, the Virtual
School Head offered to meet with Luke to discuss the matter further.

Resolved:
That the report and presentation be noted.
Supporting Care Leavers into Education, Employment or Training

Helen Radcliffe, Strategic Manager for Progression and Learning gave an
update report and presentation on the support provided to care leavers to
enable them to progress into sustained post-16 education, employment or
training (for copy of report and presentation see file of minutes).

Information was provided on the Durham Works Programme for Schools
which provides transition support and careers guidance to targeted pupils in
years 10 and 11. The Workplaces Project, which began in June 2023,
introduces pupils in years 10 and 12 to the world of work through visits to
work premises and meetings with employers, in a sector of interest to each
young person. Sessional employment opportunities provide paid work
placements with Durham County Council and 26 care leavers have accessed
these placements since October 2021. Currently 7 care leavers are
apprentices with Durham County Council.

The Panel noted the Council has used Pupil Premium Plus Post-16 funding
to appoint a dedicated officer to support care leavers who are enrolled in
further education and an incentive scheme was introduced to encourage
those in further education to maintain regular attendance at college. The
Panel noted that 32 care leavers are studying at university and their Young
People’s Advisers work closely with the young people with regard to issues
including accommodation and finance.

Current data produced by the Department for Education shows that the
proportion of care leavers aged 17-18 and 19-21 for whom Durham County
Council is the corporate parent, who are not in education, employment or
training is lower compared to the average rates regionally and nationally.
However, the proportion of care leavers, whose destination is not known in
Durham is greater compared to the average rates regionally and nationally.

Page 9



13

Page 10

The Vice-Chair noted the relatively high rate of those whose destination is
not known and the Strategic Manager responded that work is ongoing to
investigate further and she referred to the increasing number of young
people who have mental health and anxiety issues which may act as a
barrier to engagement.

Luke provided the view that 32 care leavers at university out of a total cohort
of over 300 seemed low and he asked whether more work should be done to
raise awareness of the support available to those who decide to take the
university route. The Strategic Manager highlighted that the support offered
to young people attending university was one of the areas identified by
Ofsted as a key strength and she added there is always more work to be
done. The Strategic Manager undertook to make enquiries as to whether
information was available from neighbouring authorities on the percentage of
care leavers studying at university.

Resolved:
That the report and presentation be noted.
Bi-Annual Adoption Service Report

The Panel received the six monthly review of the adoption service as a spoke
in the Regional Adoption Agency (RAA) (for copy of report and presentation
see file of minutes).

Sharon Davey, Strategic Manager, highlighted that within the reporting
period, nine adoptive families had been approved. Matches for children with
adopters continued to be carried out in a timely manner, to promote early
permanence for children. In addition, non-agency adoption referral work was
increasing. Eleven panels met during the period and work was ongoing with
regard to the recruitment of new panel members to increase the central list.
Members interested in joining the panel were asked to inform the Senior
Partnerships Officer.

Post-adoption support is an area of strength, with 119 young people
supported and 64 successful applications made to the Adoption Support
Fund to purchase additional therapeutic support. The Adoption Support Fund
includes kinship carers and Special Guardians, to ensure they receive the
same level of support as adoptive parents. Support is also provided to birth
parents to help them to write letters to adopted children.

Councillor Adcock-Forster spoke positively of his involvement in the Adoption
Panel and he encouraged members to consider joining the panel in the
future.



14

15

16

In response to an observation from the Vice-Chair on the number of
enquiries received which seemed comparatively low, the Strategic Manager
clarified that the report was a mid-point review, however, the number of
enquires had reduced. This trend was reflected nationally and possible
causes were cited as the aftermath of the pandemic and cost of living
pressures. The Strategic Manager spoke of the continuing work to ensure
messages are conveyed regarding the amount of support available, including
the Adoption Support Fund.

Councillor Deinali thanked the team for their valuable work done to support
birth parents to write letters to adopted children.

Resolved:
That the report be noted.
Durham Safeguarding Children Partnership (DSCP) Update

The Panel received the Durham Safeguarding Children Partnership (DSCP)
Update, for information.

Exclusion of the public

Resolved:

That under Section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public
be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the

grounds that it involves the likely discussion of exempt information as defined
in paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

Regulation 44 visits Aycliffe Secure Centre

The Manager of Aycliffe Secure Centre, Anne Haigh and Michelle Nicholson,
Maple House Manager, provided a quarterly update on Aycliffe Secure
Centre children’s homes and Maple House transition home (for copy see file
of minutes).

Councillors Quinn and Townsend reported that they had not been contacted
by their NYAS representative and any other Members who had not been
contacted were asked to inform the Senior Partnerships Officer who would
follow this up with the Strategic Manager for Children’s Homes.

Resolved:

That the report be noted.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Presentation by Luke and Billie-Leigh, CiCC CPP representatives

\ and Robert Johnson, Investing in Children
/.\LC-L/\ H H . .
InvNE;ting Durham Children in Care Council (CiCC) — February Update

in Children §12 young people attended the older CICC group in January to discuss DCC’s Children Looked
After Strategic Partnership’s (CLASP) priorities and the work of Durham CPP. They discussed
what they thought was important regarding this work. All the young people had a lots to share
regarding their care experienced journey. Rob Johnson sits on the CLASP as a link with the CICC.

The following themes came through strongly:-

* Feeling Safe: A stable home that creates positive memories and promotes good times growing
up was seen as important.

« Emotional and Physical Wellbeing: It was felt that emotional and physical support tailored
and provided by the right people at the right time.

+ Positive People in Your Life: Having people around you that are positive and who you can
turn to for advice/support/friendship was significant — Everyone needs a Friend! Alongside
being part of the local community in different ways.

* Being Listened to: Having the chance to share your view on life in different ways was seen as
important.

+ Understanding Things Better: Developing information and presenting it in different ways @
that children and young people understand how lots of people are trying to help them in join2d

Promoting the Rights of Children and Young People

p up ways. S
‘ﬁ « To bethe best | can be: Learning and developing in a variety of ways, connecting and 3
@ learning through different opportunities. 3

(0]

County Counci sjga{r




é’x * Durham CICC will continue to work alongside DCC representatives to feed into

éé\ CI__ASP these themes and work on a range of projects and work taking place
Investing this year.
in Children - Care Day Feedback.

» Here is a picture that was part of IIC/ CICC Care Day. The picture was part of a
photo exhibition and raffled as a prize:

Promoting the Rights of Children dand Young People

Durham &%
County Council ‘sz

Investing in Children




Agenda Item 9

Corporate Parenting Panel

8 March 2024

Regional Pathfinder Project Update

Report of Rachel Farnham, Head of Children’s Social Care, Children
and Young People’s Services, Durham County Council

Electoral division(s) affected:

None

Purpose of the Report

1 To provide an update to Corporate Parenting Panel on the Regional
Pathfinder Project, Foster North East.

Foster i

NORTH EAST

Executive summary

2 As part of the care review all 12 Local Authorities in the North East
region, including Durham County Council, came together to create a
regional Hub for the recruitment of new foster carers. The regional hub
Is hosted by Sunderland Together for Children and has been
operational since September 2023. The project is due to end April
2024, and will be evaluated in March 2024. The project is funded
through the Department for Education (DfE).

3 Since the launch of the project Durham County Council has seen an
increase in referrals for potential new foster carers and an increase in
the number progressing to the assessment phase of the process.

4 Durham County Council (hereafter referred to as DCC) have continued
to compliment the marketing activity of Foster with North East.

5 An update to the progress of this project is provided within the body of
this report.

Page 15



Recommendations
6 Corporate Parenting Panel is recommended to:

(@) note the content of the report and progress of the project; and

(b)  note the project timescales of evaluation by the DfE of March
2024.

Page 16



Background

7 The regional fostering pathfinder project and campaign is led by the DfE
working in close partnership with the North East. It is designed and
targeted to meet the specific needs and provision gaps in the North
East region for foster carers. While the DfE has worked with the North
East to deliver a central North East campaign, this has been supported
by Local Authority sign-up and commitment to the project. This is
hosted by Sunderland Together for Children. The governance structure
is explored later in this report.

8 The projects aims were to:
(@) increase the number of foster carers in the region;
(b)  reduce the need for Independent Foster Carers;

(c) reduce the need for Childrens Homes as an alternative for
children due to the lack of available carers;

(d)  reduce the number of children being moved out of the area in
which they live;

(e) reduce the number of occasions children go missing due to being
placed out of county; and

)] bring placement stability with the introduction of the Mockingbird
Programme to all Local Authorities.

9 To promote the project and routes to fostering for individuals within their
own Local Authority, a regional communications campaign was
launched supporting marketing activity across the region and looking to
ensure it is targeted and effective. The project will be evaluated in
March 2024 with an outcome report shared following completion.

The Partnership Governance

10  The Project operates in accordance with the following governance
model:

Page 17



Pathfinder Project Monthly
Board

Weekly

Pathfinder

Project Team 2-Weekly

Data /
Performance
Subgroup

Operational
Subgroup

ICT
Subgroup

2-weekly,
facilitated
by TfC

Mockingbird
Subgroup

Comms
Subgroup

11  There is a monthly Board meeting for the 12 North East Local
Authorities to attend and feed into service delivery. These were initially
weekly when forming the partnership and reduced gradually to
fortnightly and then monthly as the project progressed.

12  There is a monthly newsletter shared across the partnership.

13  There are monthly data sets produced to track progress of referrals.

Marketing

14  The marketing strategy used has been to target local media platforms,
TV, radio, online and printed materials to increase brand awareness
and attract potential foster carers.

15 Review of the impact of the marketing activity is monitored in the
analytical subgroup. Findings are produced and disseminated from the
group to demonstrate reach and impact.

Facebook

Page 18

Social media - Facebook

XYY

Followers Posts Reach Engagement

216 21 172,886 9,000




16  Activity linked with case studies and interviews are highlighted below
and evaluation of the impact will be reviewed following the next
circulation.

Facebook - top posts

O e i s A

- ﬂ .I==l -

s e

Postreach - 5,139 Post reach - 4,795 Post reach - 1,961
::g:g::‘:_“:;:w Engagement - 138 Engagement - 212
—— o, DO i
Link clicks - 563 Link clicks - 56 Link clicks - 57
Shares - 48 Shares - 10 Shares - 14

17  Facebook has been beneficial for the project and supported links
through Facebook to the website for further information.
Facebook - audience profile

Facebook followers (O Top towns/cities
216
Aged& (O] Newcastle upon Tyne
‘: Red
N N
h » i arﬁw’;ér .<M/s6r h Stockton-on-Tees

Instagram

18  The social media platform Instagram has brought in no views from
County Durham.

19 Newcastle, Darlington, Gateshead, Sunderland and London have had
241 followers from this. The case studies had 14,932 reactions on
Instagram. This is potential exposure DCC could be included in if we
were to expand on the Instagram platform.

20  As aresult of the activity seen in other Local Authorities, DCC will

explore this platform further over the next quarter.

Page 19



Website

21

22

The Foster with North East website has had 31,762 visits as shared
below.

Website referrals

o Facebook e NorthTyneside.gov.uk
o Instagram o Newcastle.gov.uk

o Google e Togetherforchildren.org.uk
o Durham.gov.uk e Stockton.gov.uk

o Bing @ Fosteringformiddiesbrough.org.uk

DCC provides the highest number of people to the Foster with North
East website in comparison to the other Local Authorities. DCC has
utilised established events to sharing three links with Foster with North
East. As shown in the infographic, the most effective pathway to the
Foster North East website is from Facebook.

Supplementary Marketing Activity by DCC to promote the project.

23

24

25

26

DCC has used the regional marketing templates on its Facebook and
wider communications.

DCC has continued to hold recruitment activities and drop in events.
We have raised the profile of the Pathfinder Project to generate interest.

DCC paid for additional bus stops to have the Pathfinder Project
advertisement as we did not have much focus in comparison to the
other Local Authorities.

These additional marketing points may have generated more interest
than other Local Authorities which are relying solely on the Pathfinder
Project to create interest.

Conversion Activity

27

Page 20

An overview of the number of referrals and enquiries can be found
below. County Durham has the highest number of enquiries. These
have translated into ten families being assessed at present.



28

29

30

DCC had 22 approved foster families between April 2023 to February
2024. Twenty of these were not linked to the launch of the project as
some of these families started their assessment prior to April 2023, i.e.
January, February and March 2023, and others had expressed their
interest to foster prior to the project launch.

However, since the project was launched at the end of September we
have seen a significant increase in Expressions of Interest (EOI) made
to the Pathfinder Hub in relation to fostering with DCC. Of the 22
approvals, DCC is the first Local Authority to subsequently have two
new families approved who attended the hub training. We are delighted
the Pathfinder Marketing Team have asked to make an article/feature of
the new County Durham families who have gone through the process.

Twenty further assessments are currently being undertaken, with a plan
of eight coming to panel in March 2024.

Fosteru 303 228 167 166 100% 72.8%

Contacts received Enquiries EOIs started Referrals to LA Contacts in time % Enquiries referred to LA

Monthly contacts received by type Contacts received by Local Authority and current status

18

49 tockic Tex 1 2
49 “ . )
% farte >
8 - 3 33 Noct
13 10 ) S

Monthly Enquiries Referred to LA

Contacts by Source
52
38 e
2% RS

~
)

N w
L ~
o |3 =137 )2|=].
2
i ~
t Y Py TS
~|7|z]z
%
;_

1

31

There will be an evaluation of the Foster with North East Pathfinder
Project in March 2024. The interviews with each local authority have

commenced for this.

Page 21



Conclusion

32  Atthis stage it is too early to analyse the impact of the project. As the
project progresses we will be in a position to fully analyse the benefits
for County Durham. This will be further strengthened by the full DfE
evaluation in March 2024.

Authors
Sharon Davey Tel: 03000 269 284
Anne Middleton Tel: 03000 266 333

Page 22



Appendix 1: Implications

Legal Implications
To be kept under review should the project be extended past March 2024.

Finance

To be shared at Finance Clinic for potential costs should the project be
extended after March 2024.

Consultation
None

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty
None

Climate Change
None

Human Rights
None

Crime and Disorder
None

Staffing
None

Accommodation
None

Risk
The project may discontinue.

Procurement
This has been to legal services for a NE12 agreement. Approved at Cabinet.

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

Corporate Parenting Panel

8 March 2024

County Council ggla{r

Performance Update

Report of Stephen Tracey, Corporate Equality and Strategy
Manager, Durham County Council

Electoral division(s) affected:

None.

Purpose of the Report

1 The purpose of the presentation is to provide the Corporate Parenting
Panel with an overview of performance in relation to children in our care
and care leavers.

Executive summary

2 The Strategy Team Leader — Children and Young People’s Services will
deliver a presentation at the meeting giving an overview of
performance.

Recommendation

3 Members of the Corporate Parenting Panel are asked to note
information contained within the presentation and comment accordingly.

Page 25



Background

4 A quarterly performance management framework is presented to
Corporate Parenting Panel which is structured around the Local
Government Association’s Key Lines of Enquiry for Corporate Parenting
Panel members.

Conclusion

5 Members of the Corporate Parenting Panel will be sighted on
performance in relation to children in our care and care leavers and will
have an opportunity to discuss performance at the meeting.

Other useful documents

o Quarterly Performance Scorecard
Author
Helen McAloon Tel: 03000 268 026

Page 26



Appendix 1: Implications

Legal Implications

We have a statutory duty to comply with all duties in relation to the children
and young people who are in the care of DCC

Finance
N/A

Consultation
N/A

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty

N/A

Climate Change
N/A

Human Rights
N/A

Crime and Disorder
N/A

Staffing
N/A

Accommodation
N/A

Risk

N/A

Procurement
N/A

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



County Durham Corporate Parenting Panel: Performance Management Framework

What are the characteristics of our cohort of children in care and care leavers?

3
Measure 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 P 023»‘ /24 England | North East
Rate of CLA per 10,000 u18 population [Number] 85 92 96 99 107 122
per = pop [840] [914] [949] [985] [1067] [1215]
L See
Age and length of time in care . N/A N/A
presentation
See
CLA Placement breakdown . N/A N/A
presentation
11% 15.1% 17% 10%
P t f CLA placed 20 mil tside LAb d 7% 8% 9% 10%
ercentage o placed over 20 miles (outside oundary) b b b b (117/1071] [182/1208] | (2022/23) RCISYIoE
Number of children placed for adoption 24 31 39 37 26 27 N/A N/A
Percentage of CLA who are unaccompanied asylum seeking 0.4% 0.1% 0.1% 2% 5% 7% 9% 5%
children [Number] u18 3] [1/914] [1/949] [18/982] [53/1067] [88/1215] | (2022/23) | (2022/23)
See

Social worker caseloads

presentation

N/A N/A

6¢ abed




Do @r partner agencies understand their role in supporting us as corporate parents?
o
8 Q3
Measure 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 England | North East
10% 16% 11% 11%
P t f CLA with issing incident during th 5% 6% 7% 10%
ercentage o with a missing incident during the year 6 6 6 6 (143/1427] PITETOM (2022/23)  (2022/23)
Percentage of children on Child Exploitation and Vulnerability 35% 27%
Tracker that were CLA? [51/144] [67/250]
R ted 14.4 14.4
Strengths & Difficulties Questionnaire - Average score 14.1 13.6 13.5 14.1 14.8 eporte
annually (2022/23) | (2022/23)
Percethage of looked after children aged 10.a.nd above Fonvictfed 59 3% 3% 2% 3% 4.4% 2% 3%
or subject to a Youth Caution or Youth Conditional Caution during
, [17] [11] [11] [12] [15] [30] (2022/23)  (2022/23)
the year [number of children]*

How are we giving children and young people the chance to express their views, wishes and feelings? How do

we know tho

se are being acted on?

2020/21 Q3
Measure 2018/19 2019/20 [Provisional] 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 England | North East
69 (59
CDYJS, 10 46 64
Number of CLA accessing an independent visitor 16 AFC) 15 (45 CDYJS, 1 (62 CDYIS, 2
waiting for NEPACS) NEPACS)

match




Are we providing stable environments for children in our care?

3
Measure 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 202?3 /24 England | North East
Percentage of CLA with 3 or more placements during the year 11% 8% 8% 12% 9% 11% 10% 9%

& P gthey [93/840] | [74/914] [73/949] [122/985] | [101/1067] | [129/1215] WMELYPICE)MPLrPIPE)
Percentage of CLA continuously for 2.5 years or more aged under 62% 65 67% 64% 68% 66% 69% 68%
16 who were living in the same placement for at least 2 years [186/298] [ 203/314] [225/338] [239/371] [263/389] [265/401] (2022/23) (2022/23)
Average number of days between a child entering care and 454

C . . . 431 428 439
moving in with its adoptive family, adjusted for foster carer 466 423 490 (Q1
. [2015-18] [2016-19] [2018-2021]
adoptions (A10) [Last 12 months] 2022/23)
Average time between an LA receiving court authority to place a 184
. . . ) 190 192 178
child and the LA deciding on a match to an adoptive family (A2) 144 157 193 (Q1
[2015-18] | [2016-19] [2018-2021]
[Last 12 months] 2022/23)
Percentage of children adopted from care (as % of total children 12.3 16% 18% 19% 18% 14% 10% 13%
leaving care) [number of children adopted shown in brackets] [39 of 316] [55/352] [54 / 304] [65] [65/360] [13/94] (2021/22) | (2021/22)
Number of Mainstream Foster Carers (Approved in period YTD) 26 12 21 29 12 18 N/A N/A
Number of Friends and Family Foster Carers (Approved in period 129 121 190 150 519 TBC N/A N/A
YTD)
Number of Adopters (Approved in period YTD) 22 25 47 40 35 9 N/A N/A

T€ abed




)
Q

Q
What are we doing to look after the health and wellbeing of children in our care?

N
3
Measure 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 202?3 /24 England | North East
Initial !—|ea|th Ass.essments completed within 20 working days of 63% 23% 23% 59% 65% 50% N/A N/A
the child becoming looked after
89% 92%
CLA with the required number of health assessments 93% 94% 91% 93% 95% 87% (2022;23) (2022;23)
76% 76%
CLA who have had a dental check 86.0% 87% 41% 85% 95% 64% o 2/"2 | e 2/"2 o
R ted 82% 84%
CLA whose immunisations were up-to-date 99% 99% 90% 91% 82% eporte . .
annually (2022/23) (2022/23)
CLA whose development assessments were up to date (CLA 12+ Reported 88% 90%
95% 97% 83% 99% 97%
months and aged 5 or younger at 31 March) ° ° ° ° 0 annually (2022/23) | (2022/23)
% CLA identified as having a substance misuse problem in the Reported 3% 3%
2.0% 2.0% Data E 1.0% 1.0%
year ° 0 ata error ° ° annually (2022/23) | (2022/23)
Percentage of new presentations to drug and alcohol treatment 10% 10% TBC 17% 13% 13% 44% 33%
during period who were CLA [Number] YTD [18 of 185] | [21 of 216] [27/149] [17/126] [5/40] (2020/21) | (2020/21)
Care leavers aged 17-21 who are pregnant or mothers (as a % of 26.3% 29% 19% 19% N/A N/A
female care leavers) [25/95] [32/111] [22/114] [23/123]
Care leavers aged 17-25 who are pregnant or mothers (as a % of 30% 24% 24% N/A N/A
female care leavers) [39/132] [33/137] [35/144]




What are outcomes like for our care leavers?

3
Measure 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 ZOZC; /24 England | North East
Percentage of care leavers age 18-21 who have stayed 21% 18% 15%
N/A N/A N/A

with their foster carer / / / [50] [44] [43]

Percentage of care leavers aged 17-18 in education, employment 61% 65% 76% 67% 65% 54% 66% 63%

or training (EET) [48/79] [55/84 ] [59/78] [56/84] [68/104] [51/94] (2022/23)  (2022/23)
Percentage of care leavers aged 17-18 in suitable 86% 90% 95% 93% 86% 88% 91% 93%
accommodation [68/79] [76/84] [74/78] [76/84] [89/104] [83/94] (2022/23) (2022/23)
Percentage of care leavers aged 17-18 in higher education 0% 0% 0% 6% 0% 1% 3% 3%

& & & [0] [0] [0/ 78] [5/83] [0/104] [1/94] (2022/23) | (2022/23)
Percentage of care leavers aged 19-21 in education, employment 51% 54% 56% 61% 56% 52% 56% 52%
or training (EET) [80/156] [94/175 ] [110/197] [134/218] [127/228] [90/172] (PIrPIPENN (2022/23)
Percentage of care leavers aged 19-21 in suitable 86% 83% 90% 85% 84% 97% 88% 89%
accommodation [131/156] | [144/175] [177/197] [186/218] [192/228] [166/173] | (2022/23)| (2022/23)
Percentage of care leavers aged 19-21 in higher education 7% 9% 6% 8% 9% 13% 6% 8%

8 & & [11/156] | [16/175] [11/197] [18/218] [21/228] [22/173] | (2022/23) | (2022/23)

g¢ abed




This page is intentionally left blank



Children in our Care

Q3 2023-24

Durham &%k




Children in Care: 1,215

Monthly CiC Numbers

9¢ abed

1215

70

88 Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children

This will increase as UASC move to Durham through
the National Transfer Scheme — 75 UASC in Q2

Static volumes in ul CiC starts as % of all CiC starts
Increase in age 1-4yr olds and 10-15 yr olds

Reduction in 5-9

CiC Starts Trend 80 CiC Ceases Trend
B0 ‘i'\ 70—
H 60
50 T FI 1 |‘I b \ NS s
“ /' ‘l" |/|\ |h\ ; \ I
[l N “ [ | o o1 f
" --rf‘\\\.!'&ﬁ"f-f‘lk f\/l‘l J“"" !'%\7{"\/;J|I-I‘|-Li ‘-IH x / \J 30 “"‘I‘I-“"'-n‘l-‘l‘riljf\""h\ ; o\ “f’\\\ 1 A/—\\z - 44@‘»-‘[\3&7———
¥ s s a e goafenfs 8RR ERRERERE AR 30 /'r\f : \\f \”ﬂ H-\-s‘-- -Ilw-:-\—-/'/\g.'jl"jl";] ‘||u|‘ l!I 20 . ‘IJ " '\."F‘i/_&‘{-?&\’-'j‘__\r';'- ‘—:j"__g\'ﬂi;’:v'\(ﬂj ; ‘/ L V 7
5 E135:=37538%33 88§88 353852388 :3¢% ® w“.ll‘| R | I‘/ ‘ll N -\:‘u
Increase in overall number of CiC and rate is now above |
regional and statistical neighbour average
Just over a third of children have been in care for less than 12
months whilst around a quarter have been in care for over 5
years 418 children became a child in care April — December 2023
2 hildren left care April =D mber 202
LoT in Care |0-3 Months [3-6 Months |6-12 Months [1-2 Years |2-5 Years |5+ Years |Grand Total 60 children left care P ecembe 023
No. 116 119 179 217 291 293 1215
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 —
% 10% 10% 15% 18% 24% 24% 100% Durhaml*‘i g;

County Council *

77% of Social Workers in our Children in Care and Care Leavers Teams had fewer than 25 cases, 2% with 30+



100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

nitial Health Assessments

IHAs
97%
358 91% 92% 3% g1y 92% 93% 93% 91% a8%
74
719 69
v, — 64
5% 589 5 5
48" 49
(=] (=1 =] - - - - o~ o™ o~ o~ o m 23] m
o o o~ o o o o~ o o o ('] o o o o~
= 2 g 5 E 5 g 5 s g g 5 S g g
z b = 2 z % 2 2 z z 2 2 z 2 2
$ ¢ 8 & & = § s & = § 5 & =T 3
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3
I | A Indicator: Coram BAAF paperwork and consent received from LA within 0-7 working days of child coming into care (AMENDED to 0-5 Days
from 2021)

mm CDDFT Indicator: Number of children offered an IHA appointment by CDDFT within 15 working days of health receiving correctly completed
paperwork and consent from Local Authority

m Statutory Indicator: Of the number of children coming into care in the quarter; number of children seen by a Paediatrician within 20 working days
of coming into care

Around half of children in care received an Initial Health Assessment
within 20 working days of coming into care in the quarter.

Rising children coming into care including UASC has affected this
g4';ndicator

9o

Reduction in required paperwork submitted in timescale to 50%

300

250

200

150

100

50

Review Health
Assessments

RHAs

100%
94% 87%

88% 89%
90%

80%

70%
60%
50%
40%
221

187 30%
20%
10%
0%

Jan-Mar22 Apr-Jun22 Jul- Sep22 Oct-Dec22 Jan-Mar23 Apr-Jun23 Jul- Sep23
Q4 Qi Q2 Q3 Q4 Qa1 Q2

mmm Number of RHAs returned within timescales mmm Number of RHAs not returned within timescales

e % RHAS due returned within timescales

Review Health Assessments completed
within timescale have also reduced — 47
out of timescale in Q2

DurhamZ3
County Council ‘5}5’




Placements and Placement Stability

8¢ abed

72%

LA 2022-23
SNs 2022-23
Eng 2022-23

Foster placements

M Foster

placements

Other
placements

Mot recorded

CLA placements by type and provision

Own provision

® Own provision

A higher proportion of children in Durham are placed in foster placements
and in in-house provision to our benchmarks.

Placement Stability remains an ongoing area of focus — children with 3+
homes in one year is just above benchmarks

72%
68%
68%

559 Other provision
Mot recorded
LA 2022-23 58%
SNs 2022-23 55%
Eng 2022-23 A44%

Children in Family Settings:

Long term stability remains slightly worse than benchmarks

Reduction in proportion but increase in numbers
Reduction in number and % in in-house FC
Increase in other placement types

12

10

11

Durham latest

% CiC with 3+ homes in year

Durham

10

England

SNs

2022/23

NE

80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10

0

04-Jun-19 11-Mar-20 20-Dec-23 No. % change No.
Placement type No. % No. % No. % change |[onJunl9| change
Friends and Family 134 15% 126 14% 228 19% 94 70%
IFA 126 15% 159 18% 253 21% 127
In House Foster Care 422 49% 430 48% 387 32% -35
Placed For Adoption 24 3% 23 3% 27 2% 3 13% 4 17% Durhamli
Placed With Parents 66 8% 62 7% 87 7% 21 32% 25 40% County Council '
Family Settings 772 89% 800 89% 982 81% 210 62% 182 60%
Grand Total 866 902 1207 341 305

% CiC for at least 2.5 years and aged under 16
who have been in the same home for at least 2
years

p 68 69 68 68

Durham latest Durham England SNs NE

2022/23




218 of 1389 looked after children had a missing incident in the last 12 months

° ° °
Missing Children orims A2 w22 myns
Number of all CLA with a missing incident 218 of 1389 143

Percentage of all CLA with a missing incident 16% 10% 11% 11%
Total number of missing incidents for all CLA 2523 996
Average number of incidents per CLA who went missing 11.6 7.0 8.0 6.4

Missing incidents - return home interviews

Latest data

Missing children offered return interview 180 of 218  83% o
19 1 1304 Missing children not offered return interview 220f 218 10% 83%
Missing children return interview offer not recorded 8 of 218 A%
Ch ||d ren in m iSSi ng Missing children where return interview was n/a 8 of 218 4%
care episodes Latest data
Missing children accepted return interview 132 of 180 73%
Missing children not accepted return interview 390f 180 22%
Missing children return interview acceptance not recorded 9 of 180 5% Offered RHI Accepted RHI
Return to
Home 814 802 Monthly decrease in volume of missing
Interviews AGESEIEE ClipEEe episodes and number of children in care
with a missing episode since October,
No. of Missing Episodes by Date however this is typical in colder months
®NMo. of Episodes @Mo. of Children
200 . High rate of completion of return to home
150 interviews (99%), however there has been a
120 . . .
decline in December but this could be a
100 . .
o o recording issue
5'}%3 44 a1 51 44 48 43 76
L —— e \/\N\
o = 47 T
¢ 3 * 40 35 35 Durham %
0 County Council ‘gl

January Febru... March April May June July August Septe... October Nove... Decs_ ..
2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023




Qa re Leavers 267 Relevant or Former Relevant Care Leavers aged 17-21

&

@
.
Care leavers by current age and gender Care leavers by whether in touch Care leavers by eligibility status
100 a2 100 97

100

a2

30 of our care leavers are

unaccompanied asylum

= - ~ recorded as being
57 57 i
. 50 N ~ seekers (UASC) all are
(] |
® - former relevant status
36 21 - 21 7 i
2 6 6 i
7 |10 Hn D Il- 29 are male aged 17-24,
1 20 21 22 23 24 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 E

50 30 36

39
17
] —__) G
21 22 23 24 16 17 18

37
I

P
0 —
16 17 18 19 20 1 female
Gender ®Female ®Male @ Non-Binary @ Transgender Intouch ® @Yes @Young Person No Longer Requires Ser... Eligibility 5t... ®Former Relevant @Relevant
S AN AN W

Currently have 198 YPS
Care Leavers by L.
Eligibility Status team monitoring open
16 710 3 1 28 Eligibility status No. cases in addition to the

Care Leavers by Age Group and Whether in Touch Care Leavers by Age and Whether in Touch

Age group 18 17-18 19-21 22-24 Total In touch 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 Total
In Touch YN No. % No. % No. % No. % No. % =

Yes 1100% 88 93% 151 88% 43 98% 283  91% | Yes 1 286 69 46 36 21 16 6 283 Relevant 5
No 7 7% 21 12% 1 2% 29 9% | Young Person No Longer 1 1 Eormer Relevani | 307 267 aged 17-21.
Total | 1 100% 95 100% 172 100% 44 100% 312 100% | Requires Services Total 312

Total 1 392765739 21 17 6 312




Care Leavers — suitable accommodation

100

a0

&0

40

20

—
18 17

34
72
38
B E [ 6 |
18 19 20 21 22 23 24

Accommodation sui... ®No @Yes

/

Age group 16 17-18 19-21 22-24 Total .

Accommodation No. %  No. % No. % No. %  No. % The proportion of care leavers

suitable . . .

Yes 1 100% 86 91% 164 95% 36 82% 287 92% in suitable accommodation

N 9 9% 8 5% 8 18% 25 8% : o :

Total 1 100% 95 100% 172 100% 44 100% 312 100% aged 17-18 is 88% (in line with
L p benchmarks) and for ages 19-

Care leavers in unsuitable accommodation by age and type
Accommodation code 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 Total

1 2 1 4
R - Residence not known 1 1
S - No fixed abode / homeless 1 2 1 4
X - In custody 31 2 1 2 5 14
Y - Other accommodation | 2 2
Total /1 8 4 31 3 5 25

21is 97% (above benchmarks)

Majority in unsuitable
accommodation are in custody

e

Tt abed

Accommodation suitability of 17-18 year olds (relevant/former relevant)

ChAT Aged 17 Aged 18 Total
Numbers in cohort 2 92 94
In suitable accommodation 100% 88% 88%
S NS Eng ===l A
88% J 97%
110
o
7 100 95 3
— 36 88
) o 90 - °
m Suitable accom 5 go m Suitable accom
Not suitable a 70 Not suitable
No information 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 Latest snapshot No information

Accommodation suitability of 19-21 year olds (former retevant)

ChAT Aged 19 Aged 20 Aged 21 Total
Numbers in cohort 76 55 11 172
In suitable accommodation 96% 98% 95% 97%
m—SNs Eng =] A
100 97
b 90 *
e
- -
=
%5 80
70
"18-19 "19-20 '20-21 '21-22 '22-23 Latest




Care Leavers - Education, Employment or Training

Cze= Leavers by Whether in Education, Employment or Training (EET) Care Leavers by Main Education, Employment or Training (EET)

0 Activity and Age Group
N Age group 16 17-18 19-21 22-24 Total
EET No. % No. % No. % No. % No. % h . f
had
Yes 51 54% 85 49% 24 55% 160 51% T e proportlon Ol care
50 Not recorded 1 1% 1 1% 2 1% 1 E 1
A No 1 100% 43 45% 86 50% 20 45% 150 48% Ieavers In ducatlon’
Total 1 100% 95 100% 172 100% 44 100% 312 100% Employment or Training
25 N W . . .
0 H B .. aged 17-18 is 54% which is
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
below all benchmarks.
EET @ Mo @Not recorded @'Yes
p
Care Leavers not in Education, Employment or Training (NEET) by Main Education, Employment or Training (EET) Activity For those aged 19-21 this
Main EET activity 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 Total .
- (o)
G6 - Young person not in education, employment or training due to pregnancy or parenting 1 8 4 3 2 3 2 23 1S 524’ aISO below
G5 - Young person not in education, employment or training: other circumstances 1 26 17 7 3 3 57 benchmarks
G4 - Young person not in education, employment or training because of iliness or disability 11516 1414 7 2 1 70
Total 1 142 41 256 20 9 8 3 150

A

Education, Employment, or Training (EET) of 17-18 year olds (relevant/former relevant) Education, Employment, or Training (EET) of 19-21 year olds (former relevant)

ChAT Aged 17 Aged 18 Total ChAT Aged 19 Aged 20 Aged 21 Total
Numbers in cohort 2 92 94 Numbers in cohort 77 55 41 173
In EET 50% 54% 54% In EET 45% 65% 46% 52%
=——ghis Eng =e=|A —C s Eng =e=|A
80 67 65
61 65 65 61
® 60 5.4 = 60
a phy o 56 56
e 40 e 55 52
o ‘S T P
= 20 ® 50
W YPin EET NEET 0 HYPin EET NEET 45
No info 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 Latest snapshot No info "18-19 119-20 '20-21 2122 '22-23 Latest




Agenda ltem 11

Corporate Parenting Panel

8 March 2024 Durham|

County Council sg,gl

Corporate Parenting Panel
Development Session and Action Plan

Report of Martyn Stenton, Deputy Corporate Director, Children and
Young People’s Services, Durham County Council

Electoral division(s) affected:
None

Purpose of the Report

1 The report captures key areas highlighted from the development
discussion in September 2023 and asks the Corporate Parenting Panel
to consider what it would like to do in relation to future development
sessions.

Executive summary

2 The Corporate Parenting Panel had a development session including
refresher training on 15 September 2023 which was facilitated by the
Deputy Corporate Director of Children and Young People’s Services
and Head of Children’s Social Care. It also included an input from the
LGAs Children’s Improvement Advisor.

Recommendations
3 Members of Corporate Parenting Panel are recommended to:

(@) Note and comment on the action plan compiled after the
development session in September 2023 (Appendix 2)

(b)  Consider what the panel would like to do to support any additional
training that may be beneficial along with further improvement
and development of the panel

Page 43



Background

4

The Corporate Parenting Panel had a development session including
refresher training on 15 September 2023 which was facilitated by the
Martyn Stenton, Deputy Corporate Director CYPS and Rachel Farnham,
Head of Children’s Social Care. It also included an input from the LGAs
Children’s Improvement Advisor, Caroline O’ Neill.

The session covered information about: Children in our care; Corporate
Parenting; Corporate Parenting Panel and who’s who; Children in Care
Council; CYPS Overview and time for discussions and questions from
members of the panel.

Following the session officers have put together a short action plan to
cover key areas discussed which were not already part of the panel’s
planned work programme and a copy of the latest version of this is
attached for panel member awareness and comments.

Members of the panel are also invited to discuss what they would like to
do in terms of any future development sessions they would like to see to
further improve the effectiveness, awareness and development of the
panel.

Conclusion

8

Members of the panel will be sighted on the work taking place following
discussion at the development session.

Members will also have an opportunity to consider further support or
additional training that may be beneficial along with further improvement
and development of the panel.

Author
Martyn Stenton Tel: 03000 268 067

Page 44



Appendix 1: Implications

Legal Implications

The development session and any subsequent activity would support the
panel undertake its statutory duties.

Finance

None

Consultation and Engagement

The report is inviting members of the panel to consider what it would like to do
in the future to support development of the panel. This may involve
consultation and engagement with others depending on the outcome of the
discussions.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty
None directly

Climate Change
None directly

Human Rights
None directly

Crime and Disorder
None directly

Staffing
The work of the panel is supported by existing staffing arrangements

Accommodation
None directly
Risk

Refresher training and development activities help the panel to be up to date
and aware of a range of issues and mitigate any risks that they are aware of

Procurement
None directly

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



ACTION PLAN: CPP Development

Feedback from CPP Induction | Action Lead Timescale
Training:

15 September 2023

Provide context on the picture Consider developing a briefing note for Clirs — to be done after we Martyn Stenton/ | Spring 2024
across the County for the have updated our next self evaluation for the social care service - Rachel

children who are in or have left | early 2024 Farnham

our care, which CPP members

can share with other elected

members.

Consideration to be given to Consider a peer review style activity / development session Martyn Stenton | Members of

constructive feedback being
shared from both leads,
members, and young people
around what works well and
where there is room for

Our Focused Visit on Care Leavers took place in Nov 23 and
allowed a great focus on the service with engagement with lead
member, leader, chair and vice chair of CPP, leaders, managers,
workers, partners and young people - very positive feedback from

CPP invited to
Care Leavers
event and
discussion on
findings at CPP

improvement. the inspection team and some areas for further development Jan 24
Consider how we better engage | Service is planning some consultation work with parents of children | Rachel June 2024
with the parents and carers of who are in our care to find out what works well, what they are Farnham

the young people who are in our | worried about and what needs to change. Findings can be fed

care through to CSCMT and then into CPP.

How many children are we Bring update to a future meeting alongside other data Helen McAloon | Added to
corporate grandparents to performance

update for Dec
23
then quarterly

Can LGA resource packs be
shared with OSC committees

Share resource packs with CYP and AWH OSC

Jayne Watson

Done Sept 23

Consider how we can do more
to meet the needs of foster

Invite foster carers and adopters to CPP meetings as part of the
Fostering / Adoption annual updates.

Rachel
Farnham

April 2024

J v abed




ACTION PLAN: CPP Development

Y]
q
¢
N
g

carers and adopters and link
them with CPP work

The service is planning to explore with their focus groups to see if
there are any reps who would be interested to attend for specific
sessions.

Consider how we get the voice | Consideration to be given to this in relevant agenda items coming to | Rachel Ongoing
of the parent through to the CPP | the panel — example pre-birth service case studies Farnham /
Martyn Stenton
Share local Councillor Information about family hubs at Full Council meeting Jan 24 to help | Martyn Stenton | Jan 24
information with foster carers as | awareness raising
a useful local contact and Information about Family Hubs shared with Foster Carers and some
further promote family hubs sessions now taking place in Family Hubs Jan 24
Adding information about Family Hubs to ‘My Durham Information’ Mar 24
and sharing with Foster Carers (already includes details of local
councillors) Mar 24

Making people aware of ‘My Durham Information’ at Family Hubs




Agenda Iltem 12

Corporate Parenting Panel

8 March 2024

Poetry Book, Children in Care and Care
Leavers

Report of Rachel Farnham, Head of Children’s Social Care, Children
and Young People’s Services, Durham County Council

Electoral division(s) affected:

Countywide

Purpose of the Report

1 This report provides a summary of the Poetry Book project, a collection
of poetry from our care experienced children, young people and care
leavers. It outlines the process and the completion of the project and
advises of next steps.

Executive summary

2 The poetry book was a request from Corporate Parenting Panel to
develop a collection of poetry from our care experienced children and
young people and care leavers. We, in partnership with a local poet ran
three poetry workshops for children aged seven year and over. The
poems by our children were collated into a book titled ‘Cherished’
(Appendix 2)

Recommendation
3 Corporate Parenting Panel are recommended to:

a) note the contents of the report.

Page 49



Background

4 The poetry book was a request from Corporate Parenting Panel
following some of our children sharing their poetry with the panel.

5 Children’s Social Care and the Virtual School agreed the funding and
were able to commission a local poet to work with our children and
young people with support from Children’s Social Care and Education
officers.

Summary

6 The children and young people attended one session to develop their
own poetry which included games and activities to assist them. Young
people who were unable to attend one of the planned sessions were
offered the opportunity to submit poetry to officers.

7 The poems were sent to DCC Design and Print service who created a
wonderful book ready for us to share.

Conclusion

8 Following on from Corporate Parenting panel on 8 March 2024, the
book will be distributed to all schools within the local authority, those
schools where children who live ‘out of county’ reside, Children’s Social
Care Teams, and all libraries across County Durham. The copy of the
book will also be given to Beamish Museum for their ‘Cottage.’

9 The poetry will be shared with all the children involved and we will
celebrate this great achievement. Some of the children involved will join
us at Corporate Parenting Panel and share some of their poems.

Author
Laura Armstrong Tel: 03000 269 444

Page 50



Appendix 1. Implications
Legal Implications

The Children Act 1989 places a legal duty on the Local Authority to ascertain
the wishes and feelings of the child. Both the Children Act 1989 and the
Convention on the Rights of the Child both have general and underpinning
principles of the child’s welfare and best interests being the paramount
concern.

Finance

Durham County Council and the Virtual School were able to jointly fund this
project.

Consultation / Engagement

Children and Young People were consulted and created their poems for the
book.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty

CSC has a duty to consult with and listen to the view of children, young people
and their parents and carers of all backgrounds and abilities.

Climate Change
No impact.

Human Rights
None.

Crime and Disorder
None.

Staffing

CSC and the Virtual School jointly provided 3-4 officers to support the
sessions with the children.

Accommodation
None.

Risk

Risk Assessments were completed for each session held with children and
young people.

Procurement

None.

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



a collection of poems from care experienced children, young people and care leavers




¥g abed

rorey

We are very eveived Ao share Ahis collechion of poery whick

W\l be availadle e all schools and Wraries across Cowncky
Durkawm. This ook Seatures o beavtriful wrraq o§ poewms
Wrikrew \o{ care cwcdewocé children and {owng people.

A buge Ahant Jou o adl Ahe children and Joung people
ivolved e creating Alis Yook, Ahe poet Katharine Godu,
Durkham Lowrty Lowndil, CMWldren Socin) Care, D\Lr\/»uws
Girrual School and all Ko k5 wvolved w Alis ?roi(’,c/k.

Enjoy!

You %'\%:Y Wews and words, doodle s’fru%M lines ko dreams,

wmae swow Arails ‘Qw\\ o‘? sYories, ‘giwé %O\A woavfuwmin \eaves.

You wove /Y\,xrow%\x e werk allies Yeside {ow, witle Siceworics,
song and srorm, Fhak wew Yoot swell, Aop Sootbpall Feam,

S(’,(’,\C\w% sYars aX cu(’,rx{ wik\Crown Aoor,

You \or'\w% %‘Aj\r»{ Kales and sisters, dance and %sw%

rods and pefs, share (,ow\g( Arasners, et chocolafe, birds,
g'\\/dv»% every bice or engine.

You owtline beillird Sefures, shine wirhe defermined \'\%H
ok ook - Jow are w\reuc\\{ he %o\é, e sun, Ahe Sice.

j,ws?'\rcé \o{ our children and {oung ’?(’,o?\c
- Wrikten \o~[ CaFlharine 60Aw @cocw\ou 72023)



Gg abed

When T was o \errle (A'\r\ 1 dreamd of wony /Y\A'm%s

ﬁow
1 dreame T would he Lice Ahe ofher gicls wy age

1T dream of seeing Wy sis¥ers

1 dream of \oc'\w% part of wy wc?\xevls and wieces \wes once again

1 drcam of \)clw% o ?Crg(’,o/\' Aouw%\ﬁu
Gometimes Ahe dream T dream Aurn o VC\(A\/(\'W\(L/FCS
1 wonder 3§ Twm %ooé cwow%\»
1 Jonder £ Twm worthe ?co?\c‘s Awme
1 dream o§ warting Xo \AC\? her ?co?\c We you ond T
1 dream of wmaXing Wy hirth go«w'\\{ ?rowé o we X
1 deeam of Ale Coture ahead of we
1 dream of Alese 'Qr'\cwés\w\'\?s Sorever D
1 dream of Ahe wmewories T have (Aa,'\vucé %
1 dream o§ Wy ildbood
1 dream of wy school \ie
And Sar 1 kave come swee T Giest srarted school
A\ Ahose wmany Jears age

1 dream o when wy Fime cowmes,

vl And T g'wwu\\{ \eane Soster care

Yo

x
1 dreamd I Was going Yo Ye o princess v‘?
j’ Ar(’_uw(\' j— woas %0’\1&% Xo \0(’, AN &/(/\'Or @ ‘@0

x

TXs ol Ao ery
‘fow kave Yeen ’H/»rou,%‘/» so wmuch
‘fovurc ket had Person because Jou were argr|
This was o wa{ T showed Wy gce\'\w%s
T lave people Fhak love we and care aowk we
T am caitlfn, T can wake o ife Sor w{se\g
T am Yrane
I awm s’how% é
Lare evperienced peeple are swperherses /
our e e w bin bag '
Tw\‘L’m% Ao g)(ra,w%crs
N\ou'\w% around Ahe countey

\fou. are a,w\ouz'\w%
‘(ou leave go¥ Alis
You are an wspiration Ao ofhers
Your fownger se\§ will be ?”‘LA of e Person fou wre

We leave o wart when we leave

We are wever ‘gor%o’\’/\’cw
We are care \Gds
&o\ooé{ rows what our Suture holds

ROBE



§ 9g abed

N

\

R
\-\

Dear sir, wmadaom or whowm & waq concern,

’“xrow%\s u«%uf\s\n and ’Y\Arow%\n sorrod and /\’\nro\»%\n s’h'\!;c,

Owr %cwuu\"\ow has ?rwcé ®s owr Furn,

AW warting one sawme /Y\A'\w% v o\/»a/w%c of e,

No longer will we be seen and wo¥ heard,
We wan be {oung bt We arewk s)wy'\é,
Ard ws were i%vxorcé our wision hecowmes Wlurred,

TR Jow hear ws we worX rewain wmeted,

Qeople come w ond ot of our liwes Sast
Qo who are we o put our Arush o,
The Sirst social worker e weeX or e \wsf,
game Saces are Ahe \ef and Wil help ws /Wrow%k,

Hope Ao kear Srom {ou soon fours sikcerel,
From o somehody fou need woX \oeou dearly

by B B s |

1Xs Ahe swmell Vyacon on a %\LV&A&»{ WOrRIRG,
Olken Ahe Slovers Sirst bloowm e Ahe spring,
or when Aee Sirst leanes Sall in Ahe ancfumn, @
When Ahe season Furns

wd e can Sl wmake Sresh Soorprinds i Ahe swow,
New §luE§y socks and plimas

and dressing govins and slippers,

Gound of rain \»’(Y/V'\w% o windou

@ A condle &, ho¥ bubble batls
@ Ahax wew Yoo swell
Or wéé\'\w% wp o our Veloved pets
Wtk bt chocolafes wirk w\/»'\wcé creom and warshmallows, Ahe \o¥
or ke Qcc\'\w% o§ Coming kome afrer o \ong rond Aeep
fresh air and \01«% wal\s,
’Wc sound og orws\w\w% Wanes
Bt wrtling Fops, werling can beat
S?cwc\'\w% qualify Fime aetl Alose we love wost

Awit= L —enistilimianeonss

uuuuuu



LG abed

D'\A Jow \Cwoul AhaX 1 was swnshine
. v T awm sunshine wived wirh Xlewnderstorms
O_: Bur when Fhere s Aewrder T calm don

Y

My Se 1 lice clowds whick are \ce a kappy daf
The weather s e wp wnd down ol Ale Awme
The sun is ver| happf as £ characters
The azure sk \ice sadness
The Ahunderstorm \ice c\cs’\?m/\r

%

by 6

i love cool

Forthalls wy wame
I \ove \eepers. The (Aoa/\s AhaX 1 sane

%wovs\h'\vx and 61,5\1»'\»\
Foothall's Wy Sane @

6o Nedcastle gol
\\ / ;

&

( ; :&WW\’\?'\V&% \,c\%\,,
6r\»s\~'\w% Ahe Worses

S—chélw% Xime \oo‘C\vx% Srer Ahew
66{\7\/’\&% Xhe Worses rco«&{ Yo ride
Horses are iws’\’ %rcou*

Haﬂ'\w% wa *oéw{

6\{ AMORYWMous

The me o gcc\'\vx% wlhen {owre sa X
w Ahe stadium on o Suhréau{ w\%\/ﬁ
Hcour'\w% Xhe crowd chant when Jowr Xewm s Winning

IXs s?co'\o./\

(>



8g abed

2 W=
% {/

z A %

g &z 2

FROM
grow o hroen howme m
‘(; Q\O\M,rs

Q 1 cowme

"5 1 cowme gFO\M w\()\oow 0
1 come Srom

1 cowme Seom o %MA
A’\w% Xhe \ove

1 cowme Geom Sl
n Ahe Slash o w Xorwm

1 come Ceom ol

1 come Srom Ao spart o

(9 %NFACV&

e Sull

Sull o§ Slowers
o'(; '(;\ovl(’,rs M\A roses

o5 wy Y /YO%(’!V\AU

wood swings a\\ of Al Aiwme ?93

%y A

A

OAC ’\/0 \&O\Lw% QCO’F\C

Tw o world of noise, we Cee\ wnseen,
Owr words lost wwmong e chans, e o silewt screwm,
Decisions wmade wethout our s,
Leave ws los¥, cam fow help ws Snd @ wany?
Tw o world Glled wirle ?ossi\()'\\'(\"\cs Alax burn so \or'\%\ﬁ)
TO%C/V\AU lebs huild o Swrure Alad shines wirle \'\%M)
And whew Jour words §all shoet, \eX aciions Yake e stage,
Quint o pickure, {our words siwpl| canne¥ ergage,
For w Ahe Ao'\v«.%) Krwe wFentions are wwgwr\cé,
As Alhe safng goes actions speak lowder Ahan an| spolcen word,
Lehs work /\’o%c/\’\/»er)
And we skall conquer any endeanour,
Bt not Sor we wnd wok Cor {ou,
for Ahe wasses o Jowng people desperate Sor o reakthrougl,
Lebs lead o bhefrer wad,
from here and wou Aodad,
A Dowk jusk saf Jou will,
Awd g'\wo\/\\s{, well wo \owger be o o standshill,
The silewce o§ Jowr deeds wnspolcen,

Cevenls a promise whrolcen.

By A

11



65 abed

The Xreble wikking Xeoam
o
’Y\Ac (/\na,wm(\ows (eagwe

M hane s'\%vn(’,é e Xop Xoew\s

L anXowo

QM7

R H ﬂc QMN\ows X

e /Y\Arow%\nou./\’ X\he Jears \ '/,

Q‘ ch er o\uuh%

F) 6{ O W OuS

Is 1zpwm and everfone is dead.

AW Auelve peeple are dead and s\o«w%M(’,rCA.
Lwedl, = waosiX one of Ahewm. BuX Wy growp was neyX.
My wame’s Jinny and Tw nuwber Auelve.

Fust Sorward Avelve fewrs. Tove wever beew Ahat scared
wowmy \'\%\c.

Tha ?a,s)f Wis Ahe worsk one. T have he pover Ao see
A wy past \wes, and wy \wst one was e \iving kell.
Tw wou sipfeen wnd Faing core of Wy Jourger \yro¥her
and sister becawse wy{ parewts died Siest.

'Wc{ Were growp wumber one. Twelve weeks \afer,

T was sevenfeen ond died o 1ZPW.

B ¢

13



09 abed

NGOy

The world wround ws ever so bigh, N
Ever so often well Youch Ahe s\,
Wher fowre %‘cc\'\w% down, just ook around,

In Ahe A'\s’\’mxoc, Ahe fresh araiCening \orcczc,
To wmake all owr worries Just go amay and Sreeze,
_W»e ulw{ /Hne vJ'\wA A:u«(,es zuué Pramwces urowwé ~{0w,

> (e o pen on Pasper, & just relaves Jou.
Your wagination creafing clouds is o ?Cr&cfk view @
A silkowetre of {our \Au‘??'\wcss s\x'\w'\w% ’H/»row%‘n V=4
Creafing what is o happy day, just 4o enjoy what wewe wade. g

In Ahe Keld werle leaves all over, shows an mage of iwrumn ASF.

By ¢

14

Moving

The socia) worker kad some weus
T ddier wand 4o hear

I caome ws quife o \o'\% surprise,
r flled we Sull of Sear.

W\wé \o\ow'\w(é wewsl

Twm W\O\l'\w% on
And W \ess Ahan o weel
T Wil be gone.

The Soster home Towe

come Yo \wow Ts  over nou

Aw& T wmust 9

The reasons T dowt wnderstand,
bt 1 have 4o accept

ws ®s all been ’F\M\wcé‘

Soon arrives the Woving Am,{,
Twme Ao say %oOA\o{c,

Kol Ahe Seiends

T Areasured and wade,

Makes we breakdoun and ery
As Ahe Aime 4o leane drew wewr,

("\\{ ket and wind

dere e%?\oéiw(é witle Sear. v

fear of Ahe wh\Cwouli,
and whak is w shore?
Bow will T Seel when

T wale /\’\Arow(é\,x e door?

My SGocind worker safs @ will Ye vu\r'\%\rh
Bt 1 didwr sleep a wink \ast w'\%M(
AW ’\'\Arow%\n Ahe Jowrney ol e wa Ahere
T could hear wy heart \ocdﬁu\%,

Celr quite [\l Ao e gw}r)

Thew, as our deshinaion %ﬁ near

T actunll begun 4o Aremble wirle Sear
The wale Srom e

car Ko the wew Srout door,

wade wy keart race N7
Saster Ahan ever YeSore.

)

A \¥rle Ao% came

Ko greeX we, and ke seemed ver{ pleased,
fle kelped we relay,

and Wy amyiety eased.

T soon readised Ahak o\l was o\cay
Bt T will never Qor%eﬁ Alee Au{(
(/\Aux%cs e Alas

can e sometling o fear,

A Sear Alax Jow wmay wet Qor%c*,
Bur ;§ Jow work on

& and Aeust Ahose around Jow

& wa prove Ao be

Ahe est change fex.

6{ ENE D

15



T9 abed

%\mw\wmﬁy
\X\mﬁs@

Sowme Avps aoowt coming ko care,

When Jowre scared never cry just

ell Jowr carer

wWhen Jowr worried and dowX Wk
Ko Aol :3"‘3)( drre o down aond gwe
& Yo o adulr /\’\l»c\{ Con \Ac\'\? Jou.

DowX worry sweerheary

By AM

16

T lice Alke gcc\’\w% when Towm "‘J>2."7C Gomw
T Awirl and swiel 2\l over Aown
7& When T look af Ahe stars Ahey ook lice gews i Ahe sy
YIF The s\ wmakes we so \wum?\{ T could ey
My Seiends \UL%\« Wtk wme and T \o.,w%k Wit Ahewm
We playf (OLs on wy LOL
Srage and T Sing & song $rom Wy song Ppage
@ My Ariirers are so oowg\{ Ao Wewr
‘Wc{ Seel Wie sofas on Wy Seex %\Z
Whew T wale /H;»row%‘» Ahe woods wikk Ahewm i
T can kear Ahe bhicds Aweet. Q

6{ Awow{w\ows

ORI
L)
m@%
\
N
s

gg

Dawcing and /N'\r\'\w% wy worries awa,
A \fmrw'\w% Passion
Q(’.rucs um,sk a,ula.»{,
Couwrage and confidence bhuilds
Enchanted by Ahe wmusic T am able 4o be we

By 1



29 abed

N

\

\um\\\‘ﬁw
et

There was o fime, T was alone
Qo\oo&{ Ko A Ao and \A(’,\"? we
T das on wy own, gur o
Tw a new ’F\Mc ’Yr\{'\w% Yo make & wm{ oun
Loos'\w(é a\\ \no'\?e aX Ahe ’\’\A'\w%s
1 wanded 4o do
Nebody believed i we
W\ooé{ loved we
Thew one Au{ T was Fold
Caif\w,
T am \ecul'\w% wow
1 have o wew Toh
6003\0{6, Aanks Sor \(’,’W\w% we Ye on Jour jowrney|
1 have Sownd someone \new Kor Jou 4o weer
yaswre og whak 4o cw\?uﬁ
A, %ooé\o{c Awee
Thew one Sure Wworking
T Was cov’hw(é “ @\(,Dom,\&s beead Sast
M\{ new worler came w\OMA
She called hersel§ Becky
She promised Ahak T would never be lonely
Ard cver sice Aot Au{
She s)(au(cé ond had Yeew Aleir when T needed ker
Welcoming we Yok Ao Ahe North East
Ta_,\(_'\u\% we Ao sty somevhere w Ahe sumwmer
Qv.sk'\w% cach ofher w Ahe sea
Ea//\”m% e cream and Sood
Ts what we do bhest

18

A\vl«u{s Cansing wiscie§ belind Trae| hack
T Was a lost gl Crom the Nortl East
660‘(»{ rings wme once a weel
Okaq caitlfn, whatever Becky
felping we /Y\nrow(ék so much 5
@cow S‘Fr'\w‘(.\cs {ow W pivie Aws’h and Aells Jou 4o Yelieve
Belicve w her and o wil\ g0 (o

dnless & comes 4o Arasns and conches
Thew s s?aur‘L\(’. dust Jow will need
You will e Sorever o \m%c part of Wy \ife
To wternal Acs’\”\w\{
6(’,0‘4 {our alreeX T swppose
T am wou not a los¥ (A'\r\ Srom Hhe Norrle East
T have Becky beside we
Qubish a wccents, she ku{\oc
\QRWA'\MA each ofher wp, \;J\/u{ no¥
Coait\n ’\’\Arovl'w\% ker ?\nowc
Becy ?re’kcvxéim% o e a,vwm{(:é
Wherever where Fogether
Where ooy Seom realety
You came into wy e ar one of Ahe wost &ifSicult Times
IX Was weand 4o e
T was a lost (é'\r\ Srom Al Norrle East

By L



€9 abed

bow Fishiw
My passion, wy{ dhsession
The rod, Ahe reel, Fhe %\s\x\w% e
The sabr of Ahe sea
The korizon \oc\{owé,
O\O%CA werle s‘/»'\"?s
Lasting wy e, T dream of Ahe wrmate catch
From “he wwr\y Aqﬁ\ﬁs
Suddenly o \re
A Gisk /Vw%%'\w(é w hello
AW quite and A,
T can hear Wy \orcuﬂniw%
Thew Ahe Gish skarks sqwcw\'\w%
Bring ke Gish Wowme

%

My \,.o\o\o{, wy dream
Testing wy lwil's against wafure

T‘AC ‘gres\n aAr
A Happiness \ies Alere

By ¢

20

In the

T am here rigld wou
("\L‘L'\V\.% poewms witl wonderful words,
Me writing rigler wow
?'\A%e/\”\w%, sqw\rwiw% and /hrwiw% wirl s'\\o\'\w%s)
Jery swper Au:‘?a, Sun
Lovely Jw\ow\cc
Fmily Aime ve came

tv\a,‘g'\w% Wmewories everyone

By A

Horrik

A pen

A kecessary ool \ife

Thin whs, Medium wiys

Blue, Black, Ced and breen
Wonder§ul, sets we Sree
Then o horeble wowment

A \o\% blee blerclh

A \ewry Pen

How wh-recessary

6\{ anorywmous

21



? 9 abed

T e rofal blue
D’S 64A %0\{ on ’\'\A(’_ \ao
T love Ar'\w‘C\w% Trow Bru

1 love 6\bs%0vj Qangers
How do Jow wake Sriends wikhowt /hp\‘(.'\w% Ao ﬁrww%@rs?
T love Sootoall and bascethall

fiefting any bl of§ o wall

T love adrenaline
Ard %‘;m% weckanical Alings
6'\‘“’,5 and cw%}wcs
A Vg wodified jus¥ sounds so Yeantiful
A ruwdle of Ale broken exhanst
Qewing , is Ale wos¥ heawriful sownd

ak )(\AC\{ sFand helind {ou, profect Alew
1§ /Y\f.c{ sFand beside {ow reS’\?(’,(/\’ thew
lg ’Wc\{ srand a,%w}wﬂ Jou, wo wmere|l

e o T love quofes! 99

| T \ove going withe Ahe Slow

/
- Tue \earned how o make o Pasper wouse
h Towm wo¥ scouse

\towrc wore Flan \'\\Lc\\{ Ao \ou.s{ o house

2

22

Twm o Mazde @7 D Vg rotary engine
Tw o Wissan Sefligh, @34 612\ Spec Mark 2
Twm o pover \om‘(., \wovling  wy energy
1 wake people bjper, T wake people \augh
Twm just W\ o wodified car lice Ahe sound of o Wiz
Twm a \owé(é'\e - Tw lowd and can g\{ anfubere T want
Then \and, n just clill Sor & winwtes, have o wowment

j\;g Cangers win, Tw \A&/’V‘?\{ and Swiy
15 Qangers lose, 1 Ceel e ‘Q\%\K\”\w(a 5:'5
Uice Ahunder and \'\%Mw'\w%
T wot Suedure- Ahat just srands still
Twm rafbher o Movr\{\uxé Loo\Ge
Witk @ V10 4 and o kal§ \dree engine
Lie people o\/»ccdw% o Throy
(e Throy, Awsterdam and Turlcey
Twm wmon Fhe Hers
(e ss Adles
Tow Ahe spice of Bill grewtl will corry on

-
Yane

2

23



/1N

T awm an acfor

X

QFring on o Sronk so Aok

cverfone \ies we

Twm aluafs Arfing Ao \e¥rer w{sc\g
o\nu«%c, dwy& Ao, what T Aline
people want

T dowt Alinke T have really
wndersfood wl\ru{

Than looking back 1 remewbvered
That Twm care \Gd

Auxé 1 \Caurwcé 'Qrovm o {oww% age
Aot 1T weed 4o Sollow Fhese rules
o o s’VrM%cr o K o chw\'\\{‘
T have Ao Yo Ahe one Alhak wmakes

an e5Sork Ao S o o 'QA/\M'\\\{
Ahats welcomed we wto the howme

G9 abed

24

iz

A =N

N

==
&

Z
4
9
D
%

Tue hecome o people pleaser

an actor Srom Alis

Sowef\’\d\w% Wee a scary is

?CO’\?\C ’\?\caus'\vx% s o 'gorv\,« o'g
wm}'\m\mﬁ'\ow. Wt Ahat had bt wos
shill s because Jow are c\»m%’m%
Jow are Ao'\w(é werle Alhak person
Wants Ko %C’Y Alhewm Ao lice Jow.

Bt s so second nafure is

so wormal, Mow can T ot Hlin

aouk what Wy Criend wants hou
can T nod Ahine abouk whar By
\s ’Y\A'\vd(;\w%_?

There's wo W Ao s¥op o,
becanse ds all Tove \wown
s all wewe ever \woww

Core ‘C\A

T am a care ‘L'\A

That does wok define we
Te g’(rw%\cé, bt here T am

T will wok e o sratiehic,

Lore is wﬁ\/ﬁ\w% e Tracf Beaker.
Qowe o—g ws coare ‘L'\As are \oa./A

wewe just ﬁrw%%\cé

We are care \Gds Ahak saad we

We have become achors
o K o Samilies.

are children we are {ourg people
Alar kad Ao grow wp Sast bhecome
vise \ocs{owé owr fears, bk wou leas
Ko g’\’ru.%%\e wierk Ale Sact Alax

de're o s’frux%ers kome S weto

e rules, Aheir Camilies

We are ‘{_'\As

We ward Ko e Howe,

we wakwa g'\wé o howme

25

Be ?a,’\iew\’ Wkl ws

Werre wot wirle owr gw'\\{, e
people wewe \woun so of course,
s gonwa be kard bt Jowr \c’\’/\”\w%
ws who o howme so Yake Aime. (et
ws \cwouw Ao Jowre gowna e Alere

%r ws and Aok Jowre gonma g\%‘ﬁ
Cor ws Ahas Al we wand

We wre care, \Gds
Do e wamwa e ids %rﬂ?

\Qc wanika \m,ue %\m Mn& \Aulc

o o\ni\é\noo&
We wre \Gds

Nt o staftishic

2N



on Ahe Aw{s whew T Seel sad
T cuddle wy Ao% she doeswt wake we wmad o

bring o Ahe parlc Ao see w Sriends ‘ : 1 Zy”" o
Qusking we on Ahe suing ﬂ % aﬂ %

The Sun wever ends H Sezzzz 5

Arer wy diner T love o share some sweeties

‘W»c\{ are Wy Sonourdve \Gnd o Keeaties
1w Ahe car T \ove Ao sing A./\OV\.% Xo wy Sonourdre wusic

T e 4o Aell stories

I e 4o colowr w
SGomerimes L realy lose ! T Ve school when s w \oirﬂnéw
On Fhe weekend we sowetimes wis Ahe sofr Pl 1 e pizze cold lie - e

1 cold bapplf stif Ahere Al dof © 1 lie lewn and lime Ao drink, ice cold lice swou
kv wigler Fime I love Ao read wy Yooks T e Ahe sea

fairy Fales of Wl &fSerert \nds, bk %@ ° 1 lice ke wares
Wb e books Aha give we Ale spooks 7>

6\{ N %/—_’ ) Wierle sprinkles and s’YruJ\ocrr{ sawce

By MD o

o

T e vanille ice cream

AV RV
AN onZ

What s Awtuwmn?

@ Well, &s o season Ao celdaraste PumP\ins @
Ard Alhe plo¥ of Arewson

on Halloween we hear everjone’s screaiws

and dress wp as witches and %\AO\L\S scloolst

@ We Trick or TreaX all over Koun @
My dad. You \crou wy dad is super cool and gel so wan| sueers Aot no-one can Srown
j,{: {ou ever Cee\ sad A oot Ahe /\’\Alux%s Al wmade fow \nw\r\?{ O ouSire WX%M whew Tve afe wy \ws¥ sueek,
Donk e wpse¥ e o weX nappy T wadch Ahe Sireors go Gizz, whizz, P ‘e' \obw(a

That s e rewson T love Alhis season

By M o

26
27



19 abed

Lare Gds , S0 yowng and sweel
A spark of e w Aleir efes
A Serure of hope and dreams
A chance Ko reach Gor Ahe skies

A world o§ owor\’ww’(ﬁ{, ims’k do&(\’wx(b o Ve C‘L’\?\Orcé

A chance Ko Sind Aheir Krue selves, Ao Gind wlhak Ahey adored
Xo wadce Aheir oun wa|

A jowrne| of discovery, o pale Aley Wil \ay

A world of compassion, a place o Seel safie
A ’F\Mc Ko Kind Aheir cournge and Aheir s’(rcw(gf\n

Lare \ads, so raxe and strong

A chance

Loare \(.'\As, so \nd and Wise

A heart of %O\A, o soul of Sire

A chance Ho make o &i§5erence, Ao \or'\w% 3 and nspire

A world of love and wwAcrs’\’MA'\w(b, o place o \earn and grow
A chance Ko reach Aheir ?ch/\ﬁu\, o chamce o reay show

Lare \Gds, so beatiful and Seee
A Lture of prowmise and i

A chance KXo wmake Aheir mary, Fo wake Aleir dreams come Arue

A world of \Mr\?@ ond ?oss'\\o'\\'(\’\{,

A chance Ko become who ’Wc{ Were weant Yo \e.

2

28

The bloodied Je¥ brave soldiers Wife is struck

The %wr%\'\w% sounds of Ale criing souls of dar,

‘fou. con hear Ahe sounds of death comkg wearer and wewrer
Otk Ahe ibrer air comes Ahe swell of wustard gas
This weu reasper Hrices Aheir neck

The \eral signs of death

I aowm War,

1 awm peace,

The hells are ringing across Ale shreeks, rthless galore
Metkers, Lathers and children \w%\w% and \issing

The people loving peace ond ewpartley

The poppies o e hatrleSield shows deatls consequence

I awm peace

By A

29



89 abed

My e is w wisery
T feel T am o prisoner of Wy \i§e
Ts o wystery
A puzzle & fou lice
ﬂ T weed answers 4o the |i§e
That 1 hane
T4s all Wes Saubr
s wek Sair
Why do T have o Wfe lice Alis
I4s \ GSes Sankr
T weed Ao 'Q'w\'\s\n al of Ale ?uzz\c
To shop my \iSe Srom \ocoowiw% o wuddle
s all (fes Sauktt

)

By A0

30

There are peeple n Alis Place dhom T oy Seom
Yes, Jow. Oré'\wu«{ people Klis old Bicrorian world
Gekpocketing s wy style
1 Seel Sree; M\ 1 ger arrested (oro)
6c\ncw&}v\%s \{ow see (%ross)

Being the rebel Ahat T can
T it ko hero;, Towm woX G?xécrwwvu tpaol)
Tw o rebel, Tw coming Sor Jou @

Being o rehel is e (er| bad)
beX rca.A{ Gor Wy scam
F\%\m\”\w% e rules
Becnuse \oeiw% %ooé real\y drools

By A

M\orosog/\’, WW,W% o] be o blecky wWord
The Acs/\”wx{ of squares oot Ao be wnfurled

Zowmbies are greew, Creepers ew\?\oéc ®
Will T swrvwe? QO\GOA{ \Cnouls

6w§\éiw% shelers safe Sor Ahe vx'\%\ﬁ

Los skeleYons Wl \ous gwe we e grl%\ﬁ @
E‘L’F\or'\w% Alhe vlor\A, Sor and wide

Witk Alhe Aools and wrwmonry \o{ wy side ﬁ

QK(,‘(.XMA wp loot Srom Ale ?ﬁri‘?{m% Worrors

SonAing %ooé\«»{c Ko all of Wy sorrous

*ow con Siwd huses e Ale orranded desert

M’mcorw%‘s he game Ao \oad wp witle Jowr presewt's 6

By ¢

31



, Agenda Iltem 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 26 January 2024
	8 Children in Care Council Update - Presentation of young people from the Children in Care Council
	Slide 1
	Slide 2

	9 Regional Pathfinder Project Update - Report of Head of Children's Social Care
	10 Performance Update - Report and presentation of Corporate Equality and Strategy Manager
	Item 10 - Performance - Scorecard
	Item 10 - Performance - Presentation
	Slide 1: Children in our Care
	Slide 2: Children in Care: 1,215
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5: Missing Children
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8


	11 Corporate Parenting Panel Development Session and Action Plan - Report of Deputy Director of Children and Young People's Services
	Item 11 - CPP Dev Session and Action Plan - Appendix 2

	12 Poetry Book, Children in Care and Care Leavers - Report of Head of Children's Social Care
	Item 12 - Poetry Book - Appendix 2

	15 Regulation 44 Visits - Durham County Council Residential Homes - Presentation of Strategic Manager of Children's Homes

